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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of SU Toll Road Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SU Toll Road Private Limited ("the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its losses inctuding Other
Comprehensive Incame, its Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SA”) specified under Section
143{10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financiai
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information, The other information
comprises the information inciuded in the Board'’s report and shareholder's Information, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the standalone financial statements or aur knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we required to report that fact. The
other information is likely to be provided to us after the date of our report. We have nothing to report

in this regard.

Management Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is respensible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act,
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
Financial Position, Financial Performance including Other Comprehensive Income, Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
pruvision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of the appropriate accounting policies;
making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process. '

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professionat skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

»  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud orerror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion. The risk of not
detecting a materjal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
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error, as fraud may invoive collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Campany has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audil evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant douht on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditer’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financia! statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
Ind AS Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative

factors in:

i, planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
ii. to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Ind AS Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent

applicable.
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2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by taw have been kept by the Company
so far as appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act;

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164{2) uf the AcL;

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these financial statements and the uperating effectiveness ol such
controls, refer te our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, we report that no remuneration
has been paid by the company to its directors during the year. Hence the requirement of the
company for compliance under this section is not applicable.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rules 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and as
represented by the management:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at March 31, 2023
on its financial position in its Financial Statement. - Refer Note No. 36 & 32 of the

accompanying financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

. (a) Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in Note No. 39 to the financial statement no funds have been advanced
orloaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
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whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries:

{b) Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in Note No. 39 to the financial statement no funds have been received
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(¢) Based on our audit procedure conducted that are considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that cause us
to believe that the representation given by the management under paragraph (2}
(i} {iv) {a} & (b) contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014E

Narendra Khandal

Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN: 23065025BGRDLQB205

Place :Mumbai
Date :April 26,2023
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"ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF SU TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED.

{Referred to in Paragraph 2 under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit,

we state that:

i) (a) (A) The company does not carry an property, plant and equipment in its financial
statements and hence the reporting requirements under this sub-clause is not
applicabie.

(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its
intangible assets.

() Inview of there being no property, plant and equipment, the reporting requirements
under this sub-clause is not applicable.

(c) There are no immovable properties disclosed in the accompanying financial
statements and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (c) of clause (D) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

(d)  As explained to us, the company has not revalued any of its Intangible assets during
the year.

(e)  According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, we repart that ne proceedings have been
initiated during the year or are pending against the company as at March 31, 2023 for
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988
(45 0f 1988) and rules made thereunder.

i) (a}  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company does not carry any inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements under
sub-clause (a) of clause (if) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

{b} The company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or
financial institutions and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (b) of
clause (ii} of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

iii)  The company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the reporting requirement
of clause 3(iii)(a), (b),(c),(d},(e} & (f) of the Order are not applicable.

iv}  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not advanced any loans to directors / to a company in which the Director is interested to
which the provisions of section 185 of the Act apply. Further, based on the information and
explanations given to us, being an infrastructure company, the provisions of section 186 of
the Act to the extent of loans, guarantees and securities granted are not applicable to the
company. Hence, the reporting requirements under clause {iv) of paragraph 3 of the order
are not applicabie.
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has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. Consequently, the directives
issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
rules framed thereunder are not applicable.

vi)  The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed such
records and are of the opinion that prima-facie, the prescribed records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view
to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

vii) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and

based on our examination of the books of the company, the company is generally
regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees” state insurance, income-tax, and any other
material statutory dues to the appropriate authorities.
There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax,
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, and any other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable,

(b)  According to the mformatmn and pr}dnatzons given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred -to in’ ‘clause (a) above which have not__ been deposited on account of any
dispute except the following; G
Name ' of the | Nature of | Period far wluch Forum where | Amount
statute Dues the . aluount -dispute is | involved

S lekued | pending (in Rs.}
Income  Tax | Income Tax | FY-2017-18 | :CIT (Appeal) 1,79,890

Act, 1961 S S
Finance  Act, | Service Tax | October 2010 to | Bombay High 3,84,30,863
1994 -'Septembel 2015 '

viii} A{:wrdmg to the information and exp]anatmns and repr eqemalion given to us, there are
no transactions relating to p]‘ewousiy unrecorded income LhaL has been surrendered or
disclosed as income cluung lhe ‘year in the tax assessments under-the Income Tax Act,

1961.

ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given and
books of accounts and records examined by us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

{b} In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority. (refer Note no.
9(1)(viii) to the financial statement)

(©) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fresh term loans have been taken during the year.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, in our
opinion funds raised on short term basis aggregating to Rs. 756 Million have
been prima-facie being used for long term purposes during the year.

(e) The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (¢) of clause (ix) of
paragrapl 3 of the order are not applicable. ,
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)] The company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture or associate and
hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause {f) of clause (ix) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

(x} {a) The Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer {including debt instruments) and hence clause (x)(a) of paragraph 3
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares
or fully or partly or optionally convertible debentures and Hence reporting
under clause {x){b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the
Company,

(i) (a) Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true
and fair view of the financial statements and as per information and
explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reparted during the year.

{b) During the year, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor/Secretarial auditor or by us
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Centra} Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

(xii) In our opinion, Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause
(xii} of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

{xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act and their
details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc, as required by the
applicable accounting standards. As per information and explanation given to us,
section 177 of the act is not applicable to the company.

(xiv) {a) In our epinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

{I) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date,
for the period under audit for the purpose of planning our audit procedures.

{xv) According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons
connected with him as referred to in Section 192 of the Act.

(xvi} (&) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of india Act,

1934.
(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to

us and on the basis of our audit procedures, the Company has not conducted
any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year as per
the Reserve bank of India Act 1934,
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{c) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to
us, the Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India,

(d) As represented by the management, the group does not have more than one
core investment company {CIC) as part of the group as per the definition of
group contained in Core Investment Companies {Reserved Bank) Directions,

2016.

(xvii) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided te us,
Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii} There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Therefore,
provisions of clause {xviii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicabie to the
Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) contribution under section 135
of the Act is not applicable to the Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xx) (a}
& (b} of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicabie to the Company.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014E

MNarendraKhafidal

Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN : 23065025BGRDLQB205

Place :Mumbai
Date :April 26,2023
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF SU TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of
our report of even date}

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub- :
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2613 (“the Act”) .

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to financiai
statement of SU Toll Road Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering Use essential companents of internal control stated in the Guidance Nole un
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”} issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibiiities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note issued by ICAl and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of interna)
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls aperated effectively in all

material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internai
controi based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and apptopriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference To These
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company ; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the Financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference
To These Financial $tatements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 3020148

Narendra Khandal

Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN : 23065025BGRD1.Q8205

Place :Mumbai
Date :April 26,2023




SU Toll Road Private Limited
CIN: UT4985MH2007FTC 169145
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

Rs.Millions
Particu! As at Asatl
articurars Note March 34, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Nonr-current assets
{a} Concesstion Inlangible assets 4 6,688.04 . 6,993.53
{0} Intangible assets under development 4 28262 -
{c) Current Tax Assels (Net) 13.87 10,32
{d) Deferred tax assets (net) 27b 9,22 43.15
Totai Non-Current Assets 6, 993.75 7.047.00
Current assets
{a} Financia! Assels
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 5a 32.18 141.10
(i1} Bank bafances olher than (i} above 5b 173.13 315,50
{iil)y Other financial asseal Sc 50.33 4G.92
by Other current assets & 117.92 15577
Total Current Assets 373.56 659.29
iotal Assets 7,367.34 T.106.29
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a) Cquily share capila 7 184,12 184.12
{b) Subordinaled debt {in nalure of Equily) da 150,00 150400
{c} Other squity 8 (240.75) (66.67)
Total Equity 93,37 247.45
LIABILITIES
Non-current lizbilities
() Financial Liabililies
Borrowings Sa 5.654.34 G,143.60
{b} Provisions 12 308.35 77935
Total Non-Current Liabilities 5,962.69 6,922.95
Current fiabilities
(a) Financiat Liabilities
{i} Borrowings ab 489.81 352,71
{ii) Trade payables 10
{A} Total oulstanding due of micro enterprises
& smal enterprises - -
(B3} Total cutstanding dues of credilors other than
miceo enterprises & small enlerprises 205.69 103.08
(i) Olher financial liabilities 11 94,51 73.09
(I3} Other current liabililies 13 9.2% 616
{€} Provisions 12a 511,95 0.85
Total Current Liabilities 1,311.25 535.89
Total Equity and Liabilities 7.367.31 7,706,2%
The accompanying notes are an integrat part of the financial statements
As per our atlached reporl of even dale,
For MKPS & Associates Far and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accounlants %
Firm Registration}No, 302014E
hY
© Bandeep Joshi Matiesn Gatkwad

{Narendra Khandal)(

Fartner

Membership Number : 065025
Date: Aprit 26 2023

Place: Mumbai

Director

DIN no . 08586595
Dale: April 26 2023
Place: Mumbai

Kirti Desai
Company Secretary
Date:

Piace : Mumbai

Direclor
DIN: 06664942




SU Toll Road Private Limited

CIN: U74999MH2007PTC169145
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

Rs.Millians
particul Not Year ended Year ended
arteudars ote March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from Operations 14 1,434.96 1.153.61
Other Income 15 13.48 15,72
Totatl Income 1,448.44 1,169.33
Expenses
Tofl Operation and Mainfainence expenses 16 323.85 321.27
Empioyee benefits expense 17 30.86 28.02
Finance costs 18 B27.64 77980
Amortization expense 4 305.49 244 .81
Other expenses 1y 74.71 44.12
Total expenses 1,667.55 1,418.02
Profit / douss) bufore tax - A {(119.11) {248.69)
Tax expense
Deferred tax charge/(credit) 33.94 138.09
Income tax for earlier year - (27.59)
Profit/{Loss) for the year - B {153.05) (359.18}
Other Comprehensive Income
- {tems that will not be reclassified to profit/loss
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans : Gains / {Loss) (1.03) {0.85)
- Income tax relating to above - -
Other Comprehensive Income/(l.oss) - C {1.03) (0.85)
Totaf Comprehensive Income /Loss} - (B+C) (154.08) {360.04)
Earnings per equity share of Rs.10 each
Basic & Diluted 34 (8.31) {19.51)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For MKPS & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014& L

For and on behalf of the Board

mManesh Gaikwag
Director
DiN: 06664942

Sandeep Joshi
Director

DIN no ; 09588595
Date: April 26 2023
Place: Mumbai

jNarendra Khandal}

Partner

Membership Number : 065025
Bate: Aprit 26 2023

Place: Mumbai

Kirti Desai
Company Secretary
Date:

Place : Mumbai




SU Tol! Road Private Limited

CIN: UT4999MH2007PTC169145
Cash fiow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

Rs. Millions

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2623

Year ended
March 31, 2022

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Profit/{loss} before tax {118.11) {248.69)
Adjustments for:
Amortisalion expenses 305.49 244.81
Interesi incoms (12.09) {15.72)
Firance Cost 827.64 779.80
Provision for Graluity / Leave Encashment 0.89 0.54
Provision for resurfacing expenses 150,28 134.18
1,153.11 894,82
Cash Generated from Operations before
working capital changes
Adjustments for:
{Increase)/decrease in financial assels {3.41) 7.95
{Increaseldecreasea in other current assets 37.85 {3.72)
Increasel(decrease} in trade payables 102,62 {91.05)
increasef{decrease) in provisions {144.28) (202.26)
Increase/{decrease} in other fimancial liabilities 21.35 0.67
Increase/{decrease} in ofher current liabilities 313 3.09
1726 {285.32)
Cash generated from opoeralions 1,170.36 609.60
Taxes (paid) net of refunds {3.55} {2.93)
Net cash gengrated from operating activities - [A] 1,166.81 606.67
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase/sale proceeds of intangible assets (inciuding Intangible assefs under
development {282.62} 23.31
Redemption of Fixed Deposils with Banks 142.37 54.79
interest received 12,11 1572
Net cash (used in) / generated from Investing activitios - [B] {128.15) 93.82
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANGING ACTIVITIES:
Repayment of iong lerm borrowings {355.45} {158.19)
Interest paid (792.14) {762.40)
Net cash used in Hinancing activities - (] {1,147.59} {920.59)
Net Increasel(decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents - [A+B+C] {108.922) {220,100
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 144110 361.20
Cash and cash equivalents at the end ot the year a2.i8 14110
Componeants of Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - in Current accounts 27.88 13812
Castt on hand 0.945 1.13
DD on hand 3.35 Q.85
Total Cash and cash equivalents [ Reter Note 5a)] 3248 141.10
Note: The above Stalement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method' as set oul in ind AS 7, ‘Statement of Cash Flows'.
Refer Note 28 - Discloswe pursuant 1o para 44 A 1o 44 £ of Ind AS 7 -Cash flow Statements
The balance in current account with banks of Rs. 22.92 milion {Rs. 137.00 million} lying in Escrow account with bank held as
security against borrowings.
As per our altached report of even date.
For MKPS & Associates For and on behalf of the Board

Charlered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014

Malwsh Gaikwad
Director
DIN: 06664842

Sandeep Joshi
Director

BiN no : 09586585
Date: April 26 2023
Piace: Mumbai

{Naren¥& Khandal)

Partner
Membership Number : 065025

Date: April 26 2023
Piace : Mumbai




SU Tolf Road Private Limited
CIN: U74995MH2007PTC 169145
Statement of Changes in Equity

A, EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Rs Milkians

Balance at the Changes in Balance af the
beginning of the {  equity share end of the year
Notes . N
year capital during the
year
For the year ended 31st March, 2022 184.12 - 184.12
For the year ended 31st March, 2023 7 184.12 - 184.12
B. SUB-ORDINATED DEBT {In nature of aquity) Rs.Millions
Balance at the Changas in Ralance at the
heginning of the equity share end of the year
Notes ) .
year capifal during the
year
For the year ended 31st March, 2022 150.00 - 160.00
For the year ended 31st March, 2023 8a 150,00 - 150.00
Ks.Mihons
o5, OTHER EQUITY
o Equity Reserves and Surplus
Component of
Note cf)mpo‘ud Securities Retained Dehenture Total
financial N . ;
instruments FPremium Earnings Redemption
Reserve Reserve
Balance at April 01, 2024 8 6.60 1,838.68 {1,719.41) 47.50 273.37
Profitf{loss) for the year {359.19) {359.19)
Other comprehensive income for the year {0.85) {0.85)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - {360.04} - {360.04)
Bafance at 31st March 2022 G.60 1,938.68 {2,079.45) 47.50 (86.67)
Balance at April 04, 2022 8 6.60 1,938.68 (2,078.45) 47.50 (86.67)
Profit /{l.oss} for the vear (153.05) {153.08)
Cther Comprehensive Income/Loss for the year {1.03) {1.03)
Totai comprehensive income for the year - - {154.08) - (154,08}
For the year ended 31st March, 2023 6.60 1,938.68 {2,233.53} 47.50 {240.75)

As per our reporl of even dale attached

For MKP3S & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014

For and on behalf on board

Mahesh Gaikwad _
Director
DIN: 06664942

Sandeep Joshi
Director
DIN no : 09586595

{Marendra Khanaal}
Bariner

Membership Number ; 065025
Date: April 26 2023
Place : Mumbai

Date: April 26 2023
Place: Mumbai




S Tolt Road Private Limited
CIN: U74999MH2007PTCI169145
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 1: Corporate information

SU Toll Road Private Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on March 24, 2007, has been awarded
on Build, Operate and Transfer {BOT) basis, strengthening of the existing carriageway from Km. 0.313 to
Km. 136.670, on the Salem — Ulundurpet section of National Highway No. 68 (NH-68) in the State of Tamil
Nadu and widening thereof to 4 lanes and its improvement, operation and maintenance through a
concession on Build, Operate and Transfer {BOT) basis under the concession agreement dated July 19,
2007, with National Highways Authority of India. The concession agreement is for a year of 25 years from
January 15, 2008, being the appointed date stated in clause 1.1 of the said agreement.

The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Refiance Infrastructure Limited. At the end of the Concession
period, the entire facility will be transferred to NHA. '

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on April 26, 2023
Pursuant to the provisions of section 130 of the Act the Central Government, income tax authorities and
other statutory regulatory body and section 131 of the Act the board of directors of the Company have
powers to amend / re-open the financial statements approved by the board / adopted by the members of

the Company.

The Company is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled in India. The registered office of the
Company is located at Reliance Cenire,19, Walchand Hirachand Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai 400 001.

Note 2: Basis of preparation

These Financial Statements compiy in all materia! aspects with indian Accounting Standards (ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015} and other relevant provisions of the Act. These Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and disclosures mandated by Schedule
lil of the Act, applicabie Ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and regulations,

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets and
liabilities which have heen measured at fair value.

These Financial Statements are presented in * Millions, except where otherwise indicated.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and

disclosures mandated by Schedule !l to the Act, applicabie Ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and
regutations.

Note 3: Summary of Significant accounting policies

341

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
= Expected to be realised or intended fo be sold or consumed in normat gperating cycle

»  Expected {o be reafised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a fiability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are dlassified as non-current.

A lizbility is current when:

= ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

= His due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

»  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at feast twelve months after

the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Mleferred tax assets and liabifities are classified as non-current assets and fiabilities.




SU Toli Road Private Limited
CIN: UT4989M11 2007 FC169145
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified tweive months as its operating cycle.

3.2 Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statemenis of the company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operales {'the functional currency’). The functional statements
are presented in Indian Rupees (), which the company's functionaf and presentation currency.

3.3 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
fransaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

*  Inthe principal market for the asset or fiability, or
«  in the absence of a principal marke, in the most advaniageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market pariicipants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market paricipant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
parlicipant thal would use lhe assel in its highest and besl use.

The Company uses valuation techriques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair vatue, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservabie inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest fevel input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

f.evel 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the jowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 -Valuation technigues for which the fowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation {based on the lowest fevel input that is significant te the fair value measurement as a whole)

at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non —
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured

at fair value.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs appfied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources o determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or fability and the level of the fair vaiue

hierarchy as explained above.

This nete summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair vaiue related disclosures are given in the
Yelevant notes.
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Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions of Financial instruments
(including those carried at amortised cost (note 21) and Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurerment

hierarchy (note 22).

3.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized up on transfer of control of promised services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those services.

Toll revenue

The income from toll revenue from operations of the facilily is accounted on accrual basis.

Effective from April 1, 2618, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
using the cumuiative catch-up transition method, applied to contracts that were not completed as at Aprit 1,
2018, In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition method, the comparatives have not been
retrospectively adjusted. There was no impact on adoption of Ind AS 115 in the financial statements.

Others

Interest Income on financial assets measured at amortized cost is recognised using the effective interest
rate method.

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is
established.

3.5 Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

The Company has Toft Road Concession righis where it Builts, Operates and Transfers (BOT)
infrastructure used to provide public service for a specified period of time. These arrangements may
include Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire usefu! life.

These arrangemenis are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible asset
model is used to the extent that the Company receives a right (a license) to charge users of the public
setvice. The financial asset mode! is used when the Company has an unconditional contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services.
When the unconditional right to receive cash cavers anly part of the service, the two models are combined
to account separaiely for each component. If the Company performs more than ohe service {i.e.,
construction or upgrade services and operation services) under a single contract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services

delivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable.

The intangible assets is measured at the fair value of consideration fransferred fo acquire asset, which is
the fair value of consideration received or receivabile for the construction services defivered.

Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected toil
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The projected
total toll revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amortization is revised in case of
any material change in the expected pattern of economic benefits, Refer note 24 for description and

significant terms of the concession agreements.

Financial assets modef

The financial asset model applies when the operator has an uncondifional right to receive cash or another
financial asset from the grantor in remuneration for concession services. in the case of concession
services, the operator has such an unconditional right if the grantor contractually guarantees the payment
of amount specified or determined in the contract or the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
users of public service and amounts specified or determined in the Contract.

Financial Assets resulting from application of Appendix D of Ind AS 115 are recorded in the Balance Sheet
under the heading "Other Financial Assets” and recognized at amortised cost.

fgwever in case of certain arrangements, the contract may include a payment commitment on the part of
meiconcession grantor covering only part of investment, with the balance {o be recovered from by charging
uggrs of service . In such arrangements the investment amount guaranteed by the concession gremgr-is:
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36

recognized under the financial asset modet and the residual balance is recognized under the intangible
asset model.

Any asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from #ts future use or disposal or when the contractual rights to the

financial asset expire,

Maintenance obligations

Contractuai obligations to maintain, replace or restore the infrastructure (principally resurfacing costs and
major repairs and unscheduled maintenance which are required to maintain the infrastructure asset in
operational condition except for any enhancement element) are recognized and measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date for which
next resurfacing wouid be required as per the concession arrangement. The provision is discounted to its
present value at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the

risks specific to the liability.
Taxes

Current Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilittes are measured at the amount expecled to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting dale in the countries where the Company operates and
generates taxable income. Current income tax relating {o items recognized outside the Statement of Profit
and Loss is recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equily). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other
comprehensive income of directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and

establishes provisions where appropriate,

Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT') under the provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax
inr the stalement of profit and loss. MAT paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives fulure economic
benefits in the form of adjustment fo future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is a
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in
the balance sheet when it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the

Company.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

a)has a iegally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b)intends either to settle on a net hasis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simuitaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and fiabllities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting

date.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax fosses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax

losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be availabie to allow ali or part of the deferred
tax asset to be ulilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settied, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been

Wacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized outside
the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilites are offsef if a legally enforceable right exisis to set off

current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

3.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the

borrowing costs.

3.8 L[Leases

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the income statement on a straight
line basis over the lease term,

3.9 Contingent liabilities and contingent Assets

A contingent liabilily is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fuiure events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability aiso arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The contingent
liability is not recognised in the books of accounts but its existence is disclosed in the Financial
Siatements. A Contingent asset is not recognized in financial statements, however, the same are disclosed
where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the iowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assefs or groups of assets {(cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possibte reversal of the impairment at the end of

each reporiing period.
3.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a resuit of
a past event, it is probabfe that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision fo be reimbursed the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using & current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the fiability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

3.12 Employee benefits

{i) Short term obligations

- Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be setfled: WGl
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within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting peried and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the fiabilities are settled. The Habilities are presented as current

emplayee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

{fi) Leave obligations
The Company provides sick Jeave and privilege leave to its employees.

Privilege and sick leave obiigation is provided based on actuarial valuation which takes into account
the estimated portion of leave that will be en-cashed, availed and the portion that will lapse. The
portion that is expected to be en-cashed is provided for based on the basic salary of the employee
and for the portion that is expected to be availed, the valuations are based on the employees’ total
compensation, The fiabilily for earned feave is also classified as current where it is expected to be
availed/ en-cashed during the next 12 months, The remaining portion is classified as non-current. The
amounts of current and non-current liabifity are based on actuarial estimates.

{iii) Post - employment obligations

The Company aperates various post-employment schemes, including
(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity
(b} defined confribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity Obligations

The liabitity or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outfiows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
that have terms approximating to the terms of the reiated obligation.

The net interest cost is caiculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense
in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in setained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the

balance shest.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curailments are recognized immediately in profit or oss as past service cost,

Defined Contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined confribution plans and the contributions are
recognized as empioyee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized
as an asset {o the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is avaiiable.

3.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shori-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Fiows, cash and cash equivaients consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of

the Company's cash management.
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3.14 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial fiability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Alf financial assets are recognised initialiy at fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through Statement of Profit and Loss, net of directly attributable transaction cost to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by reguiation or convention in the market place (regular way trades} are recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

= at amortised cost
*  at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
»  at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

Financial Assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

@) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets for collecting contractual

cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest (SPP¥) on the principal amount outstanding.

This calegary is the most refevant fo the Company. Ali the Loans and other receivables under financial
assets {(except Investments) are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that

are not quoted in an active market,

After initial measurement such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Inferest Rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calcutated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies o foans and other

receivables.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive Income

Aif investments in scope of Ind AS 108 are measured at fair vaiue. The Company has investment in mutual
funds which are heid for trading, are classified as at FVTPL. The Company makes such efection on an
instrument by Instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

{ the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FVTOCI, then ali fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive income. There is no recycling
of the amounis from Other Comprehensive Income {OCH) to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale
of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of the Company's similar finangial.
@ssets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s batance sheet) when:
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The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially aif the risks and rewards of the
assel, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and fo what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially alf of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred confro! of the asset, the Company confinues to recognize the fransferred asset to the
extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit iosses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVYOCH. The impairment methodoiogy applied depends on whether there has
beeit a signilicant increase in credit risk.

The Company has three types of financial assets subject to Ind AS 109's expected credit foss modef;
*  Loans receivables measured at amortised cost
= Retentions receivable, grant receivabie from NHA!

«  Loans given to employees
The impairment methodology for each class of financial assets stated above is as follows:

Loans receivables measured at amortised cost: Loans receivables at amortised cost are generally short
term in nature considered fo be low risk, and thus the impairment provision is determined as 12 months

expected credit losses.

Loans given to employees: For loans given to employees outstanding as on the reporting dates, the has
determined reliably that assessing the probability of defauit at the initial recognition of each and every loan
or receivabie would result in undue cost and effort. As permilted by Ind AS 108, the credit provision will be
determined based on whether credit risk is low only at each reporting date, unti! the loan is derecognized.
Using the impairment methodology the Company has assessed that no loan loss allowance needs to be

recorded in the books of accounts.

Expecled credit loss (‘ECL') impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recogaized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss {P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for varisus financiat instruments is

described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and other contractual revenue receivabies - ECL is
presented as an aflowance, Le., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

Financial Liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial fiabilities are classified, at initiat recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss, loans and borrowings, trade payables or other payables.

Ajt financial liabilittes are recognized initially af fair value.

The Company's financial liabifities include trade and other payables, foans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
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Financial liabilities at amortized cost: After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by
faking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integraé part of
the EIR. The EIR amorfization is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. However, the Company
has borrowings at ficating rates. The impact of restatement of effective interest rate, year on year due to
reset of interest rate, is not malerial. Gaing and losses are recognized in Stalement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the transaction cost amortization process.

Trade Payahles

Trade payables are obligations 1o pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of businzsa from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities iT payment is due wilbin
one year or less {or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). i noi, they are presented as

non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest methoed.,

Retention money payable

This is the category mos{ relevant to the Company. Retention moneys are measured at Fair value initiaily.
Subsequently, they are measured at amoriised cost using the EIR {Effeclive interest rate) method. Gains
and fosses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as

through the EIR amortization process.
De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceiled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liabifity are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The diference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and |.oss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liahilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legat right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
seltle on a net basis, 1o realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). Chief operating decision maker's function is to aflocate the resources
of the entity and access the performance of the operating segment of the entity.

The Board assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic
decisions. !t is identified as being the chief operating decision maker for the company,

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumplions concerning the future. The resuiting accounting
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estimates wifl, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment fo the carrying amounit of assets and Habilities are

disclosed below.

Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire
arrangements

The Company has determined that Appendix © of ind AS 115 ‘Service concession arrangements’ is
applicable to the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-{o-private service
concession arrangements. The Company has entered into concession arrangement with NHAI as per
which the Company would participate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis
the toll roads infrastructure. After the end of the concession arrangement, the Company has to transfer the
infrastructure i.e. toll roads constructed to National Highway Authorities of India (NHAI.

Accordingly the Company has recognized the intangible assets recognized as per the accounting policy
mentioned in Note no 3.5 ‘Accounting of intangible assets under service concessionaire arrangement’,

(ii) iIncome taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets relating to carried forward tax losses to the extent there
are sufficient taxable temporary differences (elating to the same taxation authority against which the
unused tax losses can be utilized, However, the ufifization of lax losses also depends on the ability of the
Company to satisfy certain tests at the time the losses are recouped. Management has forecasted future
taxable profits and has therefore recognized deferred tax assets in refation to tax losses.

{iii} Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected foll
revenue which reflecis the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The projected
tolal tolf revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amartization is revised in case
of any material change in the expected pattern of economic benefis.

{iv) Provision for resurfacing obligation (major maintenance expenditure)
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The Company records the resurfacing obligation for its present obligation as per the concession’
arrangement to maintain the foll roads at every five years during the concession period. The provision is
included in the Financial Statements at the present value of the expected future payments. The
calculations to discount these amounis fo their present value are based on the estimated timing of

expenditure occurring on the roads.

The discount rate used to value the resurfacing provision at its present value is determined through
reference fo the nature of provision and risk associated with the expenditure.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments o the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023,
MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements —This amendment requires the entities to disclose their
material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for
adopfion of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after st April 2023.

Ind AS 8-Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors ~This amendment has
introduced a definition of accounting estimates and included amendments to Ind AS 8 0 help entities
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April 2023,

Ind AS 12 ~ Income Taxes-This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption
so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April 2023.

The Company is evaluating the impact of the amendments on the financial statement.
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Note 4 - Concession Intangible assets Rs.Millions Rs. Mittions

Particulars Toll Coliection rights| Htangible assets
under development

Year ended March 2022
Opening gross carrying amount 8,604.42
Additions -
Disposals -
Closing gross carrying amount 8,604.42 -
Accumufated Amortisation and impairment
Opening accumulated Amortisation and impairment 1,366.08
Amortisation charge for the year 244.81
Disposals .
Closing accumulated Amortisation and impairment 1,610.89 -
Net carrying amount 6,983.53
Year ended March 2023
Qpening gross carrying amount B,604.42 -
Additions - 282.62
Disposals -
Closing gross carrying amount 8,604.42 282862
Accumulated Amortisation and impairment
Opening accumulated Amortisation and impairment 1,610.89
Amortisation charge for the year 305.42
Disposals -
Closing accumulated Amortisation and impairment 1,916.38 -
Net carrying amount ~ 6,688.04 282,62

Note ;

{1) The above infangible assets is pledged as security with Lenders
(2) Flat Badiapur in Thane District of Rs 2.5 Millions is included in gross block of intangible assets
(3) All the title deeds of immovable property are held in the name of the company
{4} No proceedings has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Trangactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988. Therefore the disclosure of details of Benami Property held is not

applicable.
{(8) Intangible Assets under Devejopment ageing

Amount in CWIP for a period of

March 31, 2023

iarch 31, 2022

Less than 1 year
1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

282.62

Total intangible Assets under Development

282.62

(8) Intangible assets under development completion schedule

March 31, 2023

To be completed in

Amount

otal

{ess than 1 year 2,391.01
1-2 years -
2-3 years -
More than 3 years -
2,391.01

it
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Rs. Millions
Particu! As at As at
articutars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Note 5 - Financial Assets - Current
Note 5 (a) - Cash and Cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 27.88 139.12
Cash on hand 0.95 113
DD on hand 3.35 (.85
32.18 141.10
Note 5 {b) - Other bank balances
Deposits with maturity of more than three months but less than 173.13 315,50
twelve months
173.13 315.50

Cash balance not available for use;

company is required to maintain restricted cash which can only be used as a reserve for servicing the debt under
financing arrangements. These restricied cash balances have not been inciuded in the year end cash balances for the

purposes of preparation of Cash Fiow Statement.

Cash held on restricted fixed deposits
Fixed Deposits

Note 5 (c) - Other financial assets - current
Security deposits

Grant receivable from NHA

ECL on Grant

Interest accrued on fixed deposits

Other Receivables

Claim receivable from NHAI

Note 5 (ci) Movement on Grant receivable from NHAI

As at beginning of the year

Accrued Interest

Repayment of Grant

Grant accounted for during the year/Reversal

As at end of the year

Note 6 - Other Current assets
Advance to vendors

ECL of Advance to vendor
Advance to employees

Prepaid Expenses

Duties and taxes receivable

173.13 315.50
173.13 315.50
0.27 0.27
3.92 3.92
(3.92) -
2.74 4,78
4.93 5.21
42.40 32.74
50.33 46,92
3.92 3.92
3.92 .

- 352
142.10 140,58
(35.53) -

0.41 0.60
6.24 11.24
4,70 3.35
117.92 158,77
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Note 7 - Share Capital
Rs.Miltons
. MNos of Shares As al As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Nole 7a - Authorised Equity Share Capital

At the beginning of lhe year 2,30,00,000 230.00 230.00

Add : Increase during Lhe year of Rs 10 each u

Al the end of the year 230.00 230.0¢
Note 7b - Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity

share capital

At the beginning of the year 1,84,12,260 184.42 184,12
Add @ incroase during the year of Rs 10 oach - -
Althe end of the year 184.12 184,12

Note 7¢ - Terms and rights attachiod to equity shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred Lo as Equity Shares having 2 Par Value of Rs.10/-. In the evenl of liquidation of the company,
the holdars of equily shares will be enlilfed to receive remaining assels of the company, after distribution of all preferardial amounts. The distribulion
will be in proportion (o the number of equity shares held by Ihe sharehofters.

Nale 7¢ - Revoncillation of nas of Sharas

ow ol Siaes al Hie beghnnlng of e yeur 1,44,12, 260 184,12 260

Add : Nos of Shares issued dufing the year - -

tos of Shares al the end of Ihe yoar 1,64,12,2580 1,84.12,260

Nate Vo - Shares held by the Holding Company

Company or thelr subshilariesiassociales

Rediance nfrastructure Limied

(Immediale and Uitimate Holding Company} +,84,12,260 1.84,12,260

Note 7{ - Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

Retiance infrastructure Limited

Nos of Shares 1.84,12,260 1,84,12,260
100% 100%

% of holding

Mote 7g - Details of Shares held by promotars

% change curinig the

Fromoter's Namo No. of shares % of tolal sharas year
Rellance infrastrociure |imiled 1,84.12 260 100% 0%

Note Th - Number of Shares Pledged, Safekeep and Unpledged by promters

As at AS at
Particulars March 21, 2023 Match 34, 2022
Plodged 1,49,13,920 1,45,45,655
Safekaap 34 98,329 28.66,574
Unplodged ! !
1,84,12,260 1,84,12,260
Rs Millions
As af Ag at
Particulars March 3%, 2023 March 31, 2022
Note 8z - Sub-ordinated debt (in nature of equity)
Al the beginning of the year 150,00 -
increase f {(decrease) during the year - 150.00
At the end of the year 150.00 180,00
Note 8a(l) - Sub-ordinate Debts infused by the Sponsor
Company or thelr subsidiariesfassociales
150,00 154,00

Reliance infrastructure Limiled
{immediate and Ulttimate Holding Company)

Terms and rights attached to Sub-ordinated debts infused by holding company )
i) Subordinaled debl is the part of Sponsors Equity from {he promoters of lhe companys for the project, which is unsecured and inlerest free as per

Common Loan Agreemenl wilh the lenders;
il No repaymentiredemplionfinterest servicing allowed during (he maratorium year of the long lerm project loan.

te 81 - Corporate Guarantse {in nature of equity)
the beginning of the year 6.60 6.60
ipprease / (decrease) during the year

?\ the end of the year
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Parti As at As af
articulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Note 8¢ - Retained Earnings
At the beginning of the year {2,079.45}) (1,719.41)
Net Profit/{loss} for the year {153.05) (359.198)
ltems of other comprehensive income recognised
directly in retained earnings

- Remeasuremens of post-employements {1.03) {C.85)

obligations (net of tax)

At the end of the year {2,233.53) {(2,078.45)
Note 9d - Securities Premium Account
At the beginning of the year 1,938.68 1,938.68
Premium on shares issued during the year - -
Af the end of the year 1,938.68 1,938.68

Nature and purpose of securities premium
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is ulilised in accordance

with the provisions of the act.

Note 9e - Debenfure Redemption Reserve

At the beginning of the year 47.50 47.50
Reserve created during the year - -
Reserve utilised during the year - -
At the end of the year 47.50 47.50

Nature and purpose of Debenture Redemption Reserve

As per the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 {amended), company is required io create
debenture redemption reserve out of profits equal to 25% of the amount of debentures issued. Accordingly the
company has appropriated (25%) of the debentures issued which would be utilised for redemption of debentures

during its maturity.
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Rs.Millions
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022

Note 9 (a} - Borrowings - Non current
Securod
10.75% Mon Converlible Debontures (Redesmable a0 Par) 676.08 74282
Term loans
Term loans from banks 4,121.85 A 48720
Tarm loans from financial instilutions 856,41 913,58

565434 5,143.60

Tolal

1) Securad Torm Lean fram Banks & Financial Institutions of Rs. 5,415.28 million {Principal undiscounted ameount) are secured as under:
The Baorrowings are secured by the way of terms stated in Common Loan Agreement entered bolween company and Consortium of lenders which are as under-

(i) & first ranking pari passu mongage/charge over aft the Barower's immoveable and mevable propedies, both prasent and future, except the Project Assels. ;

{4 & TFEL fankiag pote pesso chirgn on all the Borrawer's bonh aceowmts ineluding, but not limited 1o tha Fsarow Accountf (s Sub-Accounts where all revanues, Disburaemants,
receivablas shall be deposited and in afl funds rom tima to lima Aepnsten herein and in al authorised Investments or olhar coouritios reprosenting ot amaunts craditad In tha

Lsiruw Avutuit.

(it} a first ranking pari passu charge on alt movable angitle and intangible assels of the Borower {othet than those specified in paragraphs (i above and {iv) balow) including

Dut vt firibed Lo its guocwl, undenaking and unealled caprtal, both presant and future, except the Projact Assels
{iv) afirst ranking pari possu charge over f assignment of tho right, till, interests. benefits, claims and demands of o Gan ower in, b and Lnder any letier of credit, guaranieos

including conteastar guorantoes and howideted damages and pefonmence Bt parureinde by any party i ibe Prgjioct Documents.

{¥} The apflicable inlerest rate for Rupes lerm Loan vanes from 11.95% lo 13.95% pa.
p

vi} The Spensor company has pledged 8.350,252 equity shares of SU with ihe respective consorliven tenders for availing various [oans.
i)

(vii} Filing of the quartedy reluns or statements of current assots is niot applicanlo 1o the compary.

{viit}) } None of the Banks / FH / other londers has declared the company as wilul detaulter in aceordance with guidelings on wilfut defaulters issued by RBI. Henoe wilful

defauiter disclosure is not applicabls
(i} No charges or satisfaction s pending 1o ba regislered with RQC beyound the stalutory pariod
{vii} The carrying amounts of assets pledped as securily for cusrent and ron-currend borrowings are considarad in note no 26

2} Socured Loan from $0.75% Non-convertiable Debenture of Re.742.08 mitlion {Principal undiscounied amount) are seeured a5 under:

(i) As first pari pasu charge by way of mortagage over alf the fssuer's immovable propedics, tangible movable assets, including mavable plant & machinery, machinary spares,
tooks and accessaries, furniture, fixlura, vehicle and all other movable assets, both prosent and fulure except the Project Assels:
{ii} A firsd pari pasu chaige over alf accounts of the issuers including the escrow account and its sub accours.

{ill) As firsl pari pasu charge on alf intangible but ot imited Lo the goodwill aad undertaking boih presant and fullre excluding ho project assets.
(iv) As firsl pari pasu charge by assignment of fight, tite, interest, benafts, claims and demands of the issuer in the project documents and under all govemment approvals, to
and under any letter of crod, guaranies including conlractor guarariees, nswanee contracts and liguidaled damages and performance borid provided by any parly to the

projedt documents.
{v) Tha coupen rate for nan-Converthle debanturas is lixed al 10.75% p.a payabie monthly for entie tanurg,

3} Due to the outhreak of COVIDA9, the Reserve Bank of Ingia has granied relief 10 borrowars by way of moratarium of inlerest and grincipal instalments fatting due 1o indian
banks and financial instittions Wil Alg 2020. The campany availed the moratorium and notified aff consortium lenders.

Maturity Profilo of Secured Yorm 1.oan {Principal undiscounted) aro as undor ;
Laan frem Financial

. Man Convertible
Particulars Debenture Lean from Banks Institulions
FY 2023-24 £6.80 36576 5726
FY 2024-25 £3.60 462,41 70.68
FY 3025-26 Onwards 592 .68 3.660.58 798.40
TFotal 743.08 4,485.75 928,53




Ris. Millions

Particulars As at As at
March 3, 2023 March 34, 2022
Note § {b) - Barrowings -Current
Secured
Current Maturities of fong term debt (Refer nole 9{a} for Security) 489.61 352.71
489.81 352.71
Note 10 - Trade Payabies
Tolal oulslanding dug of micro enterprisas & small enterprises - -
Total oulstanding dues of creditors oiher than nHcro enterprises
& smalf enterprises
Rolaled 0,24 0.24
Other 205.45 102.84
205.69 103,08
a} Trade Payablos ageing scheduie
As at 3st March, 2023
Particulars Cutstanding for hefow periods from date of transaction
Lirsy than | Year 1-2 Years -3 Years {More then 5 Years Total
1) MEME - - - - -
21 CHhers 15 7R A.44 165,57 202 190,21
3} Dispuled Dires - MSME - - - - -
4) Disputed Dues - Olhwas - - - . -
&) Unbiflled Dues - - - - 15.48
Totat 16.28 5.44 166.57 76.22 205.69
Ag at 316t March, 2022
Particulars Qutstanting for below periads from date of transaction
Less than 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years Total
1) MSME - - - - -
2) Mhers 63.25 &.54 3.27 17.04 90.11
3} Dispuled Dues - MSME - - - - -
4} Disputed Dues - Olhers - - - - -
&) Unbilled Duss - . - - 12.97
Tatal 63.25 6.54 3.27 76,22 103.08

¢} Dues to Micro and Smat! Enterprises
Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under lhe "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Devalapmenl Adl, 2006" is based on the information available with

the Company regarding (ke sialus of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received from {hem on requests made by the
company. There are no ovardue principal amountsiinlerest payable amounts for detayed payments to such vendors al the Balance Sheel dale. There are no
defays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or for any earlier years and accordingly there is no interes! paid or austanding inlerest in this regard

in respect of payments made during the year or brought forward from previous years.




Rs.Millions

As al As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Hote 11 - Othor finrancial liabiitles - current
Interest Accruad on horrowings bl 0! due - -
Employes benefit payable 7.81 B.35
Security Deposits 0.54 .54
Retenlion maney payable (Refer Fool Note) 86.16 £4.20
Total 94.51 73.09
Foot Nate:
Retention money payables ageing schedule
As at 31st March, 2023
tstandi i tio
Particulars Quts ing for hefow periods from date of {ra ion
Less than 1 Year  {1-2 Years 2-3 Yaars More than 3 Years Tatal
Retenlion Money Payable 63.36 8.01 6.79 8.00 86.16
As at 31st March, 2022
Particulars OQutstanding for below periods from date of transaction
Less than 1 Year  11-2 Years 2.3 Years [More than 3 Years | Totat

Retenlion Money Payable 24.43 | 1944 938 | 11.26 64.20
Noto 42 {a) - Provisions - Currernt
Current
Provision {or employes benefits

- Graluity 0.80 0.84

- Leave encashnen 0.08 @i
Others

- Resurdacing expenses 511.09 -

511.95 0.85

Note 12 (b) - Provisions - Non - Current
Provision for amployee benefits

- Graluity 223 066

- Leave encashment 0.07 047
Others

- Resurfacing expunses 306,05 762

308.35 778.35

Movement in pravision during the linanciaf year is sel oub as below:
Resurfacing provisions
Al lhe barginning of the year 778.63 831.93
Charged f (credited) 1o profit or loss

addifionat Pravision recognised 150.28 13418

uwinding of discount 32,20 14.36

Amount utilised during ihe year [143.96) (201.85)
Al the end of the year 847,14 778,62

Rosurfacing provi -
Ag por the service concession arrangemeant with NHAL the company is obigated lo camy oul resurlacing of the roags under concession. The company estimates the fikely

provision raquired lowards reswfacing and aecrues the costs on a straight line basis over the period al the end of the which resufacing would be reguived, in the Statement of
Profil and Loss in accordance with ind AS 37 * Pravisions, Contingent Liabifilies and Contingent Assels’ Refer Note no. 3.5 Maintenance obligations. These provisions are made
nt which are reviewed periodically and necessary effect for the changes, if any, are laken in the linancials on prospective basis.

Hote $3 - Other current Habllilies As al Asal
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

based ant the best estimate of the manag

Brutiss and laxes payable 69.28 G616

9.23 616
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Rs.Millions

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

Nate 14 - Revenue

Qperating Income

- Income from 1o collections { Refer Note No.30.2)

Other Operaling income

Note 15 - Other income

Interest income
- Onfinancial assels carried at amorliscd cost
- On fixed deposits

insurance claim received
Excass provision for expenses written back

Note 16 - Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses

Subconlracling expenses
Maintainence of Roads
Eieeirichy expenses

Sile and other direct expenses

Note 17 - Employee benefits expenses

Salaries wages and bonus

Conlribution to provident funds and other funds
Graluily

Leave encashment

Staff welfare expenses

Note 18 - Finance Costs

Interest on foan
Unwinding of discount on provisions
Other finance charges

Note 18 < Other expenses

Rales & taxes

ECL on advance & Grant
nsurance

Legal and Professional Charges
Auditors Remuneration

- Audit Fees

- Certificafion Fees

Traveling and Conveyance
Other miscellaneous expenses

1,434.42 1,153 47
0.54 0.14
1,434.56 1,153.61
12.09 18.72
047 -
0.92 -
13.48 15.72
76.26 77.68
234.47 234.02
9.42 8.20
3.7¢ 136
323.85 321.27
28.05 25.79
1.38 1.40
0.51 0.35
0.28 0.19
6.54 0.29
30.86 28.02
783.16 760.00
32,20 14,38
12,28 542
827.64 779.80
0.83 013
3944 .
17.91 22.64
19.29 16.38
0.24 0.24
0.79 0.68
1.21 4.15
79.71 44.12




SU Toll Road Private Limited

Notes fo Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 20 - Fair value measurements
Financial Instruments by category
Signficance of financial instruments

Rs.Millions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Financial assets

At amortised Cost
Grant receivable from NHAI
Security Deposits
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Other Receivabies
Cash and Cash equivalent
Other bank balances
Claim receivable from NHAI
Total financial assets

Financial liabilifies

At amortised Cost
Floating Rate Borrowings
Debentures
Trade Payables
Retention money payable
Security Deposits
Employee Benefits Payable/other payable

Total financial liabilities

- 3.92

0.27 0.27
2,74 478
4.93 521
3218 141.10
17312 315.50
42.40 32.74
255.83 503.62
5.418.07 §,753.49
726.08 742.82
205.69 103.08
86.16 64.20
0.54 0.54
7.81 8.35
6,444.35 6,672.48




SU Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 21 - Fair value Hierarchy

{a) Fair value Hierarchy - Assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

Rs. Millions
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Financial assets

Level 3

Grant receivable from NHAI - 3.92

Total financial assets - 3.92
Financiaf liabilities

Level 3

floating Rate Borrowings 5418.07 5753.48

Debentures 726.08 42 42

Retention money payable 86.16 64.20

Total financial {iabilities 6230.31 6560.51

Recognised fair value measurements
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financiat instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an aclive market {(for example, over-the-counter
derivatives} is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little
as possible on entity-specific estimates. If alt significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the

instrument is included in fevel 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level

3. This is the case for borrowings, debentures, Retention money payable and hedging derivative included in fevel 3

Valuation technigue used to determine fair value

Specific valuation technigques used to value financial instruments include;

+ the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments

» the fair value of ferward foreign exchange contracts and principal swap is determined using forward exchange rates at the

balance sheet date
» the fair vaiue of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash fiow analysis.




(b} Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost Rs.Millions

] As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial assets
Carrying value of financial assets at amortised cost
Grant receivable from NHAf . 3.92
Total Financial assets at amortised cost - 3.92
Fair value of financial assets carried at amortised cost
Grant receivable from NHAI - 3.92
Total Fair value of financial assets at amortised cost - 3.92
Financial liabifities
Carrying value of financial liabilities at amortised cost
Fipating rate borrowigns 5,418.07 5,753.48
Debentures 72608 742.82
Retention money 86.16 64.21
6,230.31 6,560.51
Fair value of financial Habilities carried at amortised cost
Floating rate horrowigns 5.418.07 5,753.48
Debentures 726.08 742.82
Retention money 86.16 64.21
6,230.39 6,560.51

The carrying value amounts of fixed deposits, inferest accrued on depoists, retention money receivable, insurance claim
receivable, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, interest accrued, employee benefits payable and creditors for

capital expenditure approximate their fair value due to their short term nature.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounis are equal to the fair values.




SU Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 22 ~ Financial risk management
Fhe company's activities exposes it to market risk, fiquidity risk and credit risk.
This note explaing the source of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity is manage the risk.

Risk Exposure arising  Measurement Management
from
Credit risk Cash and cash Aging analysis Diversification of
eguivalents, frade  Credit ratings bank deposits,
receivables, credit fimits and

financial assets letters of credit

measured at
ameortised cost.

Market risk — foreign exchange Recognized Cash flow Actively Managed
financial assels forecasting
and liabilities not Sensitivity analysis
denominated in
Indian rupeeg (INR}

Market risk — interest rate Long-term Sensitivity analysis  Actively Managed
borrowings at
variable
Rates

Liquidity risk Borrowings and Rolting cash flow Availability of
other labilities forecasts committed credit

lings and

borrowina facilities
The company's risk management is carried out by a project finance team and central treasury team under policies approved by board
of directors. Company identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risk in close co-operation with the group’s operating units. The
Management of the company provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such
as interest rate risk and credit risk, use of derivative financial instrument and non-derivative financial instrument, and investmenis of

excess Hguidity.

Commodify risk:
The company requires for implementation (construction, operation and maintenance) of the projects, such as cement, bitumen, steel

and other construction materials. For which, the company entered into fixed price contract with the EPC contractor and Q&M

Contractor s0 as to manage our exposure to price increases in raw materials. Hence, the sensitivity analysis is not required.

Market risk - interest rate risk

The Bank ioans follows floating rates with resets defined under agreements. While interest rate fluctuations carry a risk on financials,
the company earmn toll income which is linked to WP thus providing a natural hedge to the interest rate risk.

a) Interest rate risk exposure Rs.Millions
Particu As at As at
lcuiars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Variable Rate Borrowings 5,418.07 5,753.49
Fixed Rate Borrowings 726.08 742.82
Total 6,144.15 6,496.31

b} Sensifivity analysis

Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.

! t on profit/] fter t As at As at

mpact on profitioss aiter tax March 31,2023 March 341, 2022
Interest rates (increase) by 100 basis points (45.67) {48.56)
Jmerestialps decrease by 100 basis points 4567 48,5@4




SU Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 23 - Capital risk management

The company's objectives when managing capital are fo

safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for

. shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purpose of the company's capital management, capital inciudes issued equity capital, share premium,
sub-debts and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of
the company capital management is to maximize the shareholder vaiue.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions
and the requirements of the financial covenants. Te maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may
adjust the dividend payment {o shareholders, retusn capital to shareholders or issue interest free sub-ordinate
debt. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratie, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.
The company poiicy is to keep optimum gearing ratio. The company includes within het debt, interest bearing
foans and borrowings, trade payables, less cash and cash eguivalents.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the company capital management, amongst other things, aims to
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital
structure requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital for

year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022.

Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capitat on the basis of the foliowing gearing ratio:

Net debt including total borrowings {net of cash and cash equivalents)

divided by
Total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet).

Rs.Millions
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net debt (a) 6,111.96 6,35520
Equity (b) 93.37 247 .45
Net debt to equity ratio (a} / {b) 65.46 25.68
Rs.Millions
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net debt (a) 6,111.96 6,355.20
Equity (b) 93,37 247 .45
Nebt debt plus Equity (¢ = a+b) 6,205.33 ' 6,602.66
0.98 0.96

Gearing ratio (a)/ ¢
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SU Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Liquidity risk - Table Rs.Millions
The table below analyses the company’s non-derivative financial liabifities and net-settled
derivative financiai flabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the balance sheet date fo the contractual maturity date. Derivative financiat liabilities are
included in the analysis if their contractuat maturities are essentiai for an understanding of the
timing of the cash fiows. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractua! undiscounted

cash flows.

As at March 31, 2023 Less than1  More than 1 Total
year year

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 489,80 5,668.56 6,158.36

interest on Borrowings £695.23 2.30%1.1¢ 2,996.42

Trade and other payabies 205.69 - 205.69

Cther financial liabilities 115,15 - 115,15

Toltal non-tderivatives 1,606.87 7,969.76 9,475.G2

As at March 31, 2022 Less than1  More than 1 Total
year year

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 352.71 6,158.36 6,511.07

Interest on Borrowings 738.46 2,996 42 3,734.88

Trade and other payables 103.08 - 103.08

Other financiat iiabilities 93.73 - 9373

Total non-derivatives 1,287.98 9,154.78 10,442.76




SU Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 25 -Related Party Schedule

As per Ind AS-24 " Related Party Disclosure” the Company's related parties and trasnsactions with them in the ordinary
course of business are disciosed below :

{A) Parties where control exists
Holding Company - Reliance Infrastructure Limited

{fi) Key Management Personnel
Mahesh Gaikwad - Director
Sandeep Joshi - Director - Appointed w.e f 26-04-2022
Rajesh Das - Director - Resigned w.e.f 26th Aprif 20222
Kirti Vijaysingh Desai - Company Secretary
Mr. Kumar Kundan -Manager - Resigned w.e.f 08th May 2022
Mr. Sathish Subramaniyan - Manager - Appointed 08th May 2022

Details of transactions and closing balance ; Rs.Miflions

Particuiars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Transactions during the year :-

Reimbursement of Expendifure
Reliance Infrastructure itd 6.23

Balances at the year end :-

Trade payable
Retiance Infrastructure lid 0.24 0.24
Equity share capital {excluding premium)
Reliance infrastructure Itd 184.12 184.12
Sub-debts (in nature of equity)
Reliance infrastructure Itd
Others {specify)

160.00 160.00

Corporate Guaraniee issued on behalf of Company & utilised

Reliance Infrastructure itd 350.00 350.00

Bank Guarantee issued on behalf of the company

Reliance Infrastructure itd 352.14 352.14

{B) Key Management Personnel (KMP) and details of transactions with KMP ;
Buring the year no payment was made to Key Managerial Personne! (KMP)




SU Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended Mareh 34, 2023

Note 26-Gratuity and other post-employment benefit plans Rs.Millions

a) Defined contribution plan
The following amount recognized as an expense in Statement of profit and loss on account of proviclent fund and other funds. There are no other

obligations other than the contribution payabile to the respective aulhorities.

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 1.38 1.40
Total 4.38 1.40

a) Defined benefit plan
The company has a defined benefit plan (Gratuity} for its employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the Paymenl of Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the Act,

employee who has completed five years of service is enlitied to specific benefit. The level of banefits provided depends on the member's length of
service and salary at retirement age. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary
{last drawn salary) for each completed year of service as per the provision of the Payment of Graluity Act, 1972 with total cedling on gratuily of
Rs.1,000,000/-. The said gratuity plan is funded.

The following lables summaries the The amounls recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over {he year
are as foliows:

Particulars As at As at
March 3%, 2023 March 31, 2022
Fresent Value of Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year 4.26 314
interest cost on benefil abligation 0.24 0.18
Current service cost 0.42 0.33
Benefit Paig direclly by Cinployer {0.47)
Actuarial loss / (gain} ariging from change in Demographin assumptinons 0.07 (C.0%)
Acluarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions (0.34) 0.40
Actuarial 10ss f (gain) arising on account of experience changes 1.26 (.38
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 5.92 4.26
Change in the fair vaive of plan Asset
Fair value of plan Asset at 1he beginning of the year 2.76 2.69
Inlerest cost! (income} on plan asset 0.16 0.15
Return on plan asset, excluding amount included amount included in interest axpenses/fincome) {0.03) {0,08)
2.88 2,76

Amount Recognised in the balance Sheet
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the year {5.92) {4.26)
Fair vaiue of plan Assels at the end of the Period 2.88 276
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the balance sheet (3.03) (1.50)
Net Asset is bifurgated as following:
Current {0.80} {0.84)
Nen-Current {2.23) {0.86)

(3.03) {1.50%
Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or L.oss for Current Period
Current Service Cost 0.42 0.33
Net fnlerest Cost 0.09 0.03
Expenses Recognized 0.52 0.35
Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OC) for Current Period
Acluaiial (Geains)losses arising on Obilgation for the period 0.99 237
Return on pfan assets, excluding amounl included in interest expense/(income) 2.03 0.08
Net {Income) /Expense For the Period Recognized in OCI 1.03 0.85




Particuiars As al As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Discount rate 7.31% 5.668%
Expected rate of return on plan assets (p.a.) 7.31% 5.66%
Salary escalation rate {p.a.) 8.00% 8.00%
Indian Assured Indian Assured
Moriality pre-retirement Lives Maortatity Lives Mortalily
{2012-14) (2012-14)
A quantilative analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:
As at As at

Farticulars

March 31, 2023

Marcl: 31, 2022

Assumptions -Discount rate

Sensitivily Leve!

Impact on defined benefit obligation -in % increase
impact on defined benetit obiigation -in % decrease
Assumptions -Future salary increases
Sensilivily Level

impact on defined benefit obligation -in % increase
Impact on defingd benedit obligation -in % decrease

100 bp
-3.10%
3.35%

100 bp
2.20%
3.11%

100 bp
-3.39%
3.67%

160 bp
3.56%
-3.35%

The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefits Lo be paid {o the current membership of the plan based on past service of the

employees as al the valuation dale:

Particuidars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Within the next 12 months (next annuaf reporting period)
Between 2 and § years

Between 6 and 10 years

For and Beyond 11 years

Total expected payments

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obfigalion at the end of the reporting period

Plan Assets Composition

1.08
3.53
2.45
.76
7.82

5 years

0.81%
2.26
1.77
0.47
5.30

b years

Paricufars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 34, 2022

Non Quoted
Insurer Managed Funds

A reconciliation of the asset ceifing during the inter-valuation period is given below:

Opening value of asset ceiling

Add : Interest on opening balance on asset ceiling
Remeasurement due ta ;

Changes in surplus/deficiet

closing value of asset ceiling

2.76

269

2.76

2.69




SU Tolf Road Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 27 Income tax expense

Rs.Millions

(2) Income tax expense

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year

(27:59}

Adjustments for current tax of prior pericds -
Total current tax expense - {27.59)
Delerred tax

Decreasef(increase) in deferred tax assets 11.94 {48.82)
{Decrease)increase in deferred {ax liabilities {(45.87) (89.25)
Total deferred fax expense/(benefit) {33.93) {138.07)
Less: Liability/income Payable/Recoverable from future tariff

Net deferred tax expense/{benefit) - -
income tax expense (33.93) (165.66)
income tax expense is attributable fo:

Profit from continuing operations {33.93) (165.66)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by
India's tax rate:

March 34, 2023

March 31, 2022

Brofit from operations before income tax expense (119.11) (248.69)
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 26 % {34.608%) {30.97} {64.66)
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (faxable) in caiculating taxable
income:
fncome net considered for Tax purpose {33.93) 138.07
Effect of change in Tax Rate 30.97 37.07
Income tax expense charged to statement of Profit and Loss {33.93) (165.66)
(b} Deferred tax balances
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to ;

As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Deffered tax {iability on account of :

Intangible assets

Impact of effective interest rate on borrowings
Grant receivable from NHA|

Total Deffered tax Liabilities

Deffered tax asset on account of :
Unabsorbed losses

Provision for resurfacing Expenses (MMR)
Retirement benefit obligation

Total Deffered tax Assets

Deffered Tax Asset (Net)

572.68 583.76
2.98 3.84
575.66 587.60
371.80 427.80
212.48 202.44
0.82 0.41
584.88 630.75
9.22 43.15




5U Toll Road Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Deferred Tax Template

¢) Movement in deferred tax liability / asset

Rs. Millions
intangible assets -
Unused tax losses premium Other Total
Particulars deferement
As at April 01, 2022 427.90 {583.76) 199.01 43.15
Charged/(credited) during the guarter
to profit or loss {56.30) 11.08 11.29 {33.94)
to other comprehensive income
At March 31, 2023 371.60 (572.68) 210.30 9.22
Rs.Millions
intangible assets -
Unused tax losses premium Other Total
Particulars deferement
As at April 01, 2021 §03.55 (534.14) 211.82 181.23
Charged/{credited) during the quarter
to profit or loss {75.65) (48.62) (12.81) {138.08}
to ather comprehensive income
At March 31, 2022 427.90 {583.76) 199.01 43.15




SU Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 28 : Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are;
Rs.Millions

Note [ March 31, 2023 ; March 31, 2022
Current
Financial assets
First charge
Cash and cash equivalents Ha 32,18 141.10
Bank balances other than above 5h 173.13 315.50
Other Financial Assels 5¢ 50.33 46.92
Non-financial assets
First charge
Other Current Assets 7 117.92 165,77
Total current assets pledged as security 373.57 659.29
Non-current
First charge
Intangible Asset 4 6,688.04 6,993.53
Other non current assets 6 - -
Total non-current assets pledged as security 6,688.04 6,993.53
Total assets pledged as security 7,061.61 7,652.82

Note 29: Disclosure pursuant to para 44 A to 44 E of ind AS 7 -Cash flow Statements

Year Ended Year Ended

Particulars March 31,2023  March 31,2022
Long term Borrowings
Cpening Balance 6,496.30 6,651.46
Avaited during the year - -
Changes in Fair Value

- impact of Effective Rate of interest 3.29 3.03
Less : Repayment During the year 355.45 158.19
Closing Balance 6,144.14 6,496.30
Interest Expenses
Opening Balance - -
interest Charge as per Statement Profit & Loss 827.64 779.80
Changes in Fair Value
- Impact of Effective Rate of Interest {3.29) {3.03)
- Unwinding of Discourtt on provisions {32.21) {14.38)
- Unwinding of Biscount on retention money - -
Interest paid io Lenders {792.14) {762.40)
Cleosing Baiance 0.00 {0.09)




SU Tol Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 30 - Contingent Habilities
Rs.Millions

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Particulars

1. Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts and under Iligation

Income Tax Claim 0.18 .18

2.FasTag Penaity : -The company has been coliecting penatty from the users for using FasTag lanes without valid FasTAG, the
same has been considered as part of income of the company since the company is of the view that the same is not payable to
NHAI notwithstanding the demands from NHAI. The aggregate amount of penalty collected and appropriated under Income for
March 2023 is Rs.19.91Million { For March 2022is Rs.28.98 Million)

3.Independent Engineers/ NHA! have issued various communication to the company purportedly towards default in meeting the
mairtenance obligation of the company and consequential penalty on account of the same. The company has contested the
same and hence no effect of the same is considered necessary in the financial statements

4.There are numerous inferpretative issues refating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement dated February 28th, 2049 on
Provident Fund (PF) on the inclusion of allowances for the purpose of PF contribution as well as its applicabiiity of effective date.
The Company has evaluating and there is no material impact on its financial statement. The Company, in respect of the above
mentioned Contingent Liabilities has assessed that it is oniy possible but not probable that cutflow of economic resources wil be

required.

5.The indirect tax authorities during an investigation in Financial Year 2016 stated that the Company was net eiigible to avail
CENVAT credit as there was no oufput service liable to tax. The department issued an order in April 2016 demanding interest on
the CENVAT credit availad for pericd October 2010 to March 2012 and penalty on account of wilful suppression of facts. The
Company has appealed against such order before the Tax Appellate Tribunal. The tribunal has set aside the said adjudication
order against which department has now gone in appeal before the Hon'ble High Court of Mumbai.

Note 31 Capital Commitments and other commitments

Rs.Millions
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2023 |1 March 31, 2022

Estimated vaiue of capital contract remaining

to be executed for construction of toll road 2,391.01 -

Note 32 - Arbitration Claims by the company

EPC Contractor has raised claims against the company under the provisions of the EPC Agreement which primarily arose due to
events attributed to NHAL The claims were scrutinized by the company and after due deliberations, it is agreed between the
company and the EPC Contractor that the claims shall be referred to NHA? for consideration.

Accordingly the company, along with ifs claims, submitted the claims of the EPC Contractor to NHAF for consideration. The claims
went through the Dispute Resolution procedures of the Concession Agreement inciuding the amicable settlement between the two
Chairmen of NHAI and the company. However no settiement could be arrived between NHA! and the company within the
stipuiated time. The company has referred the claims fo arbitration. The EPC Contraclor has agreed to awaif the conclusion of
process of Arbitration between the company and NHAI before pursuing further action on the matter. It is agreed between the
company and the EPC Contractor that ill such time as the Arbitration between company and NHAY is concluded, no rights of the
EPC Contractor with regard to Limitation on the claims will be affected. The company will update the EPC Conlractor with regard
to the status of the Arbitration process with NHAL

The Claims referred to Arbitration by the company amounts to Rs. 8,111.40 millions which also includes the claims of the EPC
Contracter amounting o Rs. 5,442.99 miflions.

The company has also sought for compensation for the delay in reimbursement of such claims by way of interest at the rate of SBI

PLR plus 2% on the claim amount.
urther, the Arbitration Tribunal has given Award on 20.10.2021 and Tribunal rejected all the claims submitted by SUTRPL for an
ntof Rs. 811, 13, 97,480. In Case of Counter claim, the particulars of award are as under:




1. For Refund of Excess Grant paid to the Claimant (Rs. 182.84 Cr) : Refund of Rs. 182.94 Crwas rejecled. However, awarded to
recover interest @9%p.a. on the sum of 22.897Cr with effect from 27th Oct 21 till full adjustment. l.e. itis Rs. 30.3 Cr.

2. Awarded principal amount of Rs. 57.03 Cr. Against the counter claim on Q&M Obligations and Interest @ 9 % P.A pendente lite
and future till the payment,

3. Direction fo the Claimant to complete the work under its contractual obligations as per the Concession Agreement: The
claimant being under a contractual obligation to undertake periodic repair works/BC Overlay of 40mm thickness once in every 5
years is directed to complete the said work expeditiously and in keeping with the best industry practices having regard {o the
recommendations made by the IC as to the timeframe for completion of the said work.

Now, SUTRPL has filed Petition under section 34 of Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 in the Delhi High court to chalienge the
award in May 2022. Malter is pending before the Hon'ble High Court of Deihi.

The EPC Contractor has agreed to await the conclusion of the process in the Courts. It is also agreed between the EPC
Contractor and Company that payment towards EPC Contractor's claims shall be made to the EFC Contractor by the Company
when the same is received from NHAI. The Company wili update the EPC Contractor with regard to the status of the matter.

Note 33
The Company has received communication from NHA! for intention of Termination {loT) alleging breaches, which, iner alia,

include purported non fulfillment of maintenance obligation by the company as per the requirement of Concession of Agreement.
The Company has contested the same and hence do not anticipate any such action by NHAI since it is in the process of fulfilling

the required obligation(s), wherever required.

Note 34 - Earning per share: Rs Mifions
Particul Year ended Year ended
articulars March 31, 2023 |} March 31, 2022

Profit / Loss attributable to equity shareholders {Rs Miflions) {A) {153.05) {359.18)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted earnings per 1,84,12,260 1,84,12,260
share (B)

Earnings / {l.oss) per share (Basic and diluted) (Rupees} (A/B) {8.31) {19.51}
Nominal value of equity shares (Rupees) 10.00 10.00

Note 35- Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged in "Road nfrastructure Projects” which in the context of ind AS 108 "Operating Segment” is considered
as the only segment. The Company's activities are restricted within India and hence, no separate geographical segment disclosure

is considered necessary.

Note 36- Foreign Currency Exposure

The company does not have any exposure in the foreign currency

Note 37- Events after reporting period

There are no subseguent event after the reporting year which required adjustments to the Financial Statements.




SU Tell Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

Note 38 - Ratios
Particulars Mar-23 Mar-22 % variance Reason for variance
1) Current ratio (a/h} 0.45 3.60 (87.36) Ratio reduced mainly due {o
increase in  current malwily  of]
secured loan as compare to iast year
Cusrent Assets (a) 973.56 659.29 and reduction in cash balances.
Current Liabiiity (b) 821.44 183.18
2} Debt Equity ratio {c/d} 65.81 26.25 160.67 Debt Equity ratio has reduced mainly
Debt (o) 674415 549637 due o losses during the year,
. e resulting into reduclion in equity.
Egjuity (d) 83.37 247.45
3) Debt Service Coverage ratio { eff) 0.88 0.84 4.84 Ratio reduced mainly due to increase
EBITDA {e) 1014.07 77592 in repayment of secured foan during
. . : the year,
Interest on Term Loan 732,14 762.40
Principal Repayment 355.45 158.18
Totfai Interest & Principal Repayment (f) 1,147.58 920.58
4) Return on Equity ratio (gfh) {0.90} (0.84) 589 Ratio increased mainly due o losses
during the year, resulling into
Profit after Tax (a) 163.06) 35975 reduclion in shareholder's equity.
AverageShareholder's Equily {h) 170.41 427.47
5} Trade Payable Turnover ratio (iff) 2.61 246 6.31 increase in turnover mainly due fo
higher toll revenue in compare to last
Nel Credit Purchases () 40556 365.39 yeat and reduction i trade payable,
resuiting in improvement in ratio.
Average Trade Payable(j) 154.39 148.60
6) Net Capital Turnover ratio (k/n} {3.20} 242 {232.23) Ratio reduced mainly due to
Niet Sales (k) 1T434.96 TTETE increase in current  maturity  of
. e secured loan as compare to last year
Current Assets () 373.56 659.29 and reduction in cash balances.
Current Liabilities (m) 821.44 183.18
Woarking Capital (n) {-m} {447.88) 47812
7) Net Profit ratio {0.11) {0.31} {65.74) Ratio improved mainiy due to
Profit after Tax (m) (153.05) (356.19) increase in Toll Revenue as comapre
to last year resulting in reduction in
Net Safes (n) 1,434.96 1,153.61 Profit afler Tax.
8) Return on Capitaf Employed {o/r) 0.11 0.08 4423 Ralio improved due 1o increase in 1ol
revenue, resulfing increase in
EBITA (0) 708.53 539 17 operation profit during the year as
compare to fast year.
Net Worth {p) 93.37 247 45
Total Debd (g 6,144.15 6,496.31
Total Capital Employed {'r) {p+q) 6,237.51 6,743.76
9} Return on Investment NA NA -
10} Inventory Turnover Ratio NA NA& -
1) Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio NA NA -




Note 39

Other Statutory information
(i} The company has no transaclions with struck off companies under seclion 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies

Act, 1858,
{t}} The Company do not have any Capial-work-in progress or intangible assets under development, whose completion is overdue or has

exceeded its cost compared {0 its eriginal plan.
{lii) The Company have not advanced or fpaned or invested funds 1o any other personfs) or entity{ies), including foreign entities

(intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shaik
(a} Direclly or indireclly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any mannher whatscever by or on behalf of the company

{Ultimale Beneficiaries) or
(b) Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiaries.

{iv) The Company have not received any fund from any persor{s) or entily(ies), including foreign entities {(Funding Parly) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise} that the Company shali:

{a) Directiy or indirectiy tend or invest in other persons or entilies identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party

(Uitimate Beneficiaries) or
(b} Frovide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uilimate Beneficiaries.

Note 40
The Company have not any such transaction which is nol recorded in the books of accounts thal has been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the income-tax Acl, 1961,

Note 41 Details of Crypte currency or virtual currency
Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virual Currency during the financial year
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